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Financial Review

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s board uses a range of performance measures to monitor and manage the business Certain of these
measures are UMpPOrtant In measunng our progress in creatng shareholder value and are considered key performance
indicators (KPIs) The KPIs measure past performance and also provide information 1o allow us to manage the
business mnto che furure and comprise sales and operating profit, before amortization of non current intangibles and
non-recurring 1tems, by business segment, interest cover, adjusted difuted earnings per share and net debt KPIs for
2007, wogether with comparanves, are set out in the table below

2007 2006

£000 £000
Sales Co-edition Publishing 38,380 38,407
Publishing 61,727 55,206
100,107 93,613

Operating profut before amortization of non-current intangibles and non-recurnng items
Co-edition Publishing 5,215 5,277
Publishing 6,435 5,245

Operating profit before amortization of non-current intangibles,
non-recurring items and group overheads 11,650 10,522

Operating profit before amortization of nen-current intangibles and
non recurring items, after deducuing group overheads 10,560 9,557

Interest vover, based on operating profit before

amortization of non-current intangibles and non-recurring ttems 163 x 416 x

Adjusred diluted earnings per share 24 4p 22 5p
£000 £000

Net debt 43,373 30,992

Underlying Co-edition Publishing sales, excluding the impact of currency, increased by 6% Reprints accounted
for 68% of sales compared to 70% last year, confirming that we have a very valuable backlst and thar our
business model 1s working effectively Underlying Publishing sales, excluding the acquisition and the impact of
currency, increased by 3% Publishing sales include a first ime contnibution of £7,118,000 from our
acquisinon, MBI Pubhishing Company LLC (“MBI”} Reprints of the book publishing units accounted for 59%
of sales, the same percentage as last year

The operaung profit margin, before amoruzation of non-current intangibles and non-recurring iems, in the Co-
ediion Publishing segment was 13 6%, compared to 13 7% last year The operanng profit margin in Publishing was
10 4%, up from last year, when 1t was 9 5%

Interest cover was lower, at 3 63 umes, compared to 4 16 umes last year, due to the acquisinon of MBI

Adjusted diluted earnings per share has increased by 8% from 22 5p 1o 24 4p

Ner debe was £12,381,000 higher than last year due to the acqusinion of MBI Underlying cash generanon, excluding

the cash oucflow in respect of acquisitions, was strong Excluding acquisitrons, net debr was £5,560,000 lower than
last year
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Financial Review

SHAREHOLDER RETURN
Adjusted fully dilured earnings per share (see Note 10 on page 57) were 24 4p (2006 22 5p), up 8%

The propased final dividend of 4 Op represents an increase of 7% on last year's final dividend The total dividend for
the year 1s 7 15p, an increase of 6% on last year The rotal dividend 15 3 4 umes {2006 3 3 tmes} covered by
adjusted fully diluted earmings per share

The market price of the shares of common stock an December 31, 2007 was 171 5p, down 4% compared to last
year (178 5p)

Quarto's common stock has gencrated a very sirong total shareholder return aver the five years ended December 31,
2007 of 127% Over the same peniod, Quarto’s common stock has significantly oucperformed the FTSE small cap
mdex and the media sector

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE GROUP
The Group’s borrowings, hquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange exposures and banking relavionships are
managed at Group level The following policies have been applied during the year 1o manage the financial nisks faced

by the Group with regard to funding and hquedity, mterest rate exposure and currency rate exposures

. Liguiduty risk, the Group prepares an annual cash flow forecast which 15 reviewed by the Board covenng the
next twelve months This forecass 1s reviewed n the hight of the facibicies avanlable to the Group to ensure chae
we have adequate hquidity The Directors, having made enquines, consider that the Group will have adequate
resources for the foreseeable furturs

. Interest rate nsk, 1n order to protect the Group from increases in US$ interest rates, the Group enters mnto
mterest rate swaps The overall objective 1s to fix the interest rates on approximately 50% of our borrowmgs

. Currency rate exposure, the Group’s prnincipal operating currency 1s the US dollar Approximacely two thirds of our
sales arc denominated in US dollars and a geeater purcentage of our expenditure At Group level we try to tmatch
our annual US dollar receipts and payments in order to mungate the impact that exchange rate fluctuanions, with
regards to the US dollar, have on our results In 2007, we had net US dollar income The following table sets out
the pnincipal average rates of exchange used in translanng the resulrs of our overseas subsidiarres

2007 2006
US Dollar 200 1 84
Hong Kong Dollar 1561 14 32
Austrahan Dollar 239 245

Operationally, the Group has built up strong relacionships wath 1ts cuscomers but, 1w 1s ner over reliant on any one
customer In terms of product, we are not rehiant on any one product or group of products None of our utles
accounted for more than 1% of group revenues in 2007

FINANCIAL REPORTING

We have very tight reporting deadlings so that we can focus on running the business This requires considerable
commitment and hard work from my staff and I would hike to thank them all for their hasd work, unstinting suppert
and loyalty We have had an extremely busy year and, at numes T have asked a lot from my siaff, bur they conunue o
produce the goods

>

M ] Mousley

Chicf Fimancial Officer

March 18, 2008
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present ther report and the audited financaial statements of The Quarto Group, Inc, for the year ended
Becember 31, 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group conducts an international business whose principal acuivity 1s as a publisher of illustrared non-fiction
books 1n co-editson and under its owa imprint, for both adults and children A detailed review of the development of
the business of the Group 15 grven in the Chawrman's Report on pages 3 to 2 and the Review of Operations on pages
10to 27 A review of the business of the Group 1s set out in the Financial review on pages 31 1o 32 The principal
nisks and uncertaincies facing the Group are discussed 1n the Fimancial Review

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit for the year after taxation and nunority interests amounted to £4,243,000 (2006 £2,800,000)
The Directors propose a final ordinary dividend of 4 0p {2006 3 75p) per share subject to approval at the Annual Meenng

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company, who served as Dhrectors throughour the year, were as follows

L F Orbach

R ] Morley

M ] Mousley

P Campbell (Non-executive)
P Waine (Non-execuuve)

L Collhins {Non-execunive)

Previously an academic 1in New York, Laurence Orbach, Charrman and Cheef Execunve, had some publishing
expenence before founding Quarto n 1976 Together with his role as Chairman and Chief Executive, he 1s also

responsible for Group Strategy

Roburt Morley, Creanve Director, tramned as a designer, and was magazine art dircetor for the Sunday Telegraph
between 1967 and 1970 Before co-founding Quarto, he spent some time with Reader’s Dugest and [PC Part Works,
amongst others

Mick Mousley, Group Finance Direcror, B 8¢, A C A, worked for 12 years at Delotiee Haskins & Setls {(now pairt of
PriceWaterhouseCoopers}, the last two years of which were as a sentor manager in the Mergers and Acquisitions
Department He joined Quarro in 1987, and was appointed Finance Director in 1989

Educated at Eton College, Peter Campbell started his business career with the Booker Group, holding a number of
marketing positions m cherr United Rum Merchants subsidiary  From 1972 ta 19892 he was with the Ocean Group,
iitially on the sales and marketing side, and from 1987 10 1989, he was the General Manager, UK Operactons, for
the MSAS subsidiary, with responsibiity for 27 locations and 800 staff Since 1989 he has been involved 1n
management training and development

Perer Waine has a wade corparate expenence gamed as a result of holding exccunive and non-executive Direcrorships
wn a vanety of different sectors and with compames both public and pnivate, up to £1 bilhon wrnover The
orgamsanons he has worked for include GEC, Coopers & Lybrand, W R Royle, and the CBI He is the co-founder of
Hanson Green, the principal source for non-executive appomntments in the UK He s also a Visting Professor at boch
Cass and Warwick Business Schools

Leigh Collins has extensive City experience He was formerly a Director and Head of Corporate Finance at
Stockbrokers, Collins Stewart Limuted, a firm of which he was joint founder 1n 1991

None of the Directors has a service ageeement of more than one year's duration

Save as disclosed in Note 33, no Thrector has had a matenal interest m any contrace of sigmficance with the company

or 1ts subsidiaries durmg the year
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS
The Directors who held office at Pecember 31, 2007 had che following inrerests in the share capiral of the Company

Number of U$80 10 shares of common stock

SHAREHOLDING December 31, 2007 January 1, 2007
L F Orbach* 2,909,185 2,909,185
R J Morley 1,401,852 1,402,852
M ] Mousley 71,700 71,700
L Collins {(Non executive) 337,650 337,650
P Campbell (Non-executive} 1,000 1,000

P Waine (Non-exccunve) "
Detals of the Direcrors’ optians are given 1 the Directors’ Remuneranion Report on page 39
*2,678,413 shares tn whith L F Orbach 1s interested are owned through hus family crusts

During the year the marker price of the shares of common stock ranged berween 159 5p and 188 5p The marker
price ag December 31, 2007 was 171 Sp

Berween December 31, 2007 and March 18, 2008 there have been no changes 1n the interests of the Directors

EMPLOYEES

Applications for employment of disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of
the apphcant concerned Tn the event of staff becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure that their
employment with the group contnues and that appropriate traineng 1s arranged It 1s the policy of the group that
the traimning, career development and promouon of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be 1denuical with

that of other employecs

The group places considerable value on the involvement of 1ts employees and has conunucd 1ts pracuce of keeping
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various facrors affecting the performance of the
group This 1s achieved through formal and informal meenings Employees are consulted regularly on a wide rangs of

marters affecting thewr current and future interests

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at March 18, 2008 the tatest pracncable date prior 1o the publicanon of thus repart, the Directars have been advised of
the followtng shareholders who have an interest of 3% or more 1n the shares of common stock of the company

Number of US$0 10

Shares of common stock Percentage
] O Hambro Capital Management 3,987,568 19 5%
1 F Orbach 1,909,185 142%
Enmsmore Fund Management 2,270,000 111%
Herald Investment Trust 1,737,500 B35%
R ] Morley 1,402,852 5 9%
Invesco Enghsh & International Trust 1,190,000 58%
The Quarto Group, [nc 767,321 38%
Lattice Group Pension Scheme 734,882 le%

Liontrust 693,348 34%
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GOQING CONCERM BASIS

After making enquirics, the Darectors have formed a judgement, at the nme of approving the financial statements,
that there 15 a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequare resources to conunue 1 operanonal existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason the Directors continue to adopr the going concern basis in prepaning the
financial statements

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Group 15 exposed to a number of principal nisks and uncertainies The Group's financial nsk management strategy 15 set
out on page 32 of the Financial Review and i Note 17 Operanonal nsks are set out on page 32 of the Financral Review

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors have reviewed the governance arrangements of The Quarto Group, Inc i the context of the
Combined Code, revised in June 2006 The principles of the code have been applied as follows

a) The Board of Directors represents the sharcholders’ interests in maintaining and growing a successful business
including optmising consistent long term financial returns

b)  The Board comprises of three execunive Directors and three non-execunve Directors The non-executive Directors,
P Campbell (appointed March 26, 1998), P Wame {appointed June 4, 1998} and L. Collins (appomnted March 9,
1999) are considered by the Board to be independent, not withstanding the facr thar P Campbell receives £15,000
for consuling fees and has 1,000 shares and that I, Cellins has 337,650 shares

c) The Board meets s1x tumes a year Each of the Directors, except for P Campbell who missed one meeung due
to illness, arrended all of the meetings held duning the year A formal agenda ts prepared for each meetmg and
all board papers and informanion are circulared 1o the Board forty-eight hours before the meetings

d) All of the Directors are subject to re election by the shareholders at the Annual Meeting

e) The remuneration of the executive Directors 1s recommended by the Remuneration Commuttee, compnising
PWane, P Campbell and L Collins The Remunerauon of non-executive directors 1s determined by the Board
as a whole A separate repore wath respect (o Directors’ remuncration ts included on page 38 The Commurtee,
which mects twice a year, dous not have formal wnitten torms of reference

f) The Chairman and the Finance Director are responsible for investor relations They mect wich major
shareholders during the course of the year to ensure thar they develop an understanding of thetr views, which
are communicated to the rest of the Board at Board Meetings The non-executive Directors meet with major
sharcholders from tume to time Sharcholders are inviced to atrend the Annual Meening at least rwenty working
days 1 advance of that meeung The Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration Commuttec, P Waine, who 1s
also the Semor Independent Direcror, attends this mecting

g)  The Audu Commuttee, compnising P Campbell, P Waine and I Collins, 15 chaired by P Wame and meets with
the independent auduors ac least twice a year L Collins provides the Commuttee with financial experience
The Commuttee regularly review at Board level the financial back up and facilines available at Head Office, as the
Group conunues to expand The Comnuttee has formal written terms of reference The Committes momitors the
level of non-audi fees paid to the auditors to ensure that their objectsvity 15 safeguarded

h}  The non-executive Directors nieer to discuss the executive Directors with the Chairman present and also meet
with the execuuve Directors without the Chairman present, m order to evaluate the performances of the Board

1) Quarto has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action aganst the Direcrors

] All Directors have aceess to the advice and services of the Company Secretary

k] All of the non-executive Directors attended all of the Audit Committee and Remuneraton Commuttee
meenngs held duning the year
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The Group has complied throughout the year with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the 2003 FRC Code, aparnt
from those hsted below Where non-compliance 15 reporred, this 15 because, 1n the opimon of the Board, it 1s not
approprate to change current pracuice due to the size and consttunion of the Board The provisions of the Combined
Code not comphed with are as follows

a} A2 1 - The Chawrman of the Company 1s also the Chief Execunive

b} Al 1- A formal schedule of marters specifically reserved for the Board s not required, since the Board forms
the executive management of the Group

c) A3 2 - The Company does not have any formal arrangements for Directors, 1n the furthecance of thewr duties,
to take independent professional advice

d) B2 2 - The Remuneranon Comnuttee consists of three independent non-execunive Direcrors, but, it does not
have responsibility for the remuneration of senior management below the main Board level P Warne 15
the Chairman of the Commuttee

e) Schedule Al - Performance related bonuses are not normally given

fy B2 1 - There are no terms of reference for the Remunerauon Committee

g) A4 1 - The Company does not have a Nominations Committee The Board as a whole 15 responsible for the
appamnument of 1ts own members

h) A1 1 - The Group does not have formal “whistleblowing * procedures However, the structure 1s flat and the
hne of communicanon 15 short In addition, the Execunive Board and the finance department carry out
several visits per year to individual operatng umis

The Board will continue to review 1ts corporate governance arrangement, in the hight of the Combined Code, as the
Group develops and grows, and, 1n partucular will review those provisions of the Combined Code thar are not
complied wich currently

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board 1 respensible for the Group’s system of internat control and for reviewing its ffecnveness However, such
a system 1s dlesigned to manage rather than climmate the sk of failure to achieve business ebjecttves and can provide
only reasunable and not absolute assurance against matenal nusstatement or loss The mamn elements of the internal
control system are

a)  The results of individual operaning units are reported monthly and reviewed by the Board at 1es six board
meetings a year

b)  The management reporss of each operating umt are tailored to swit the business and management needs of local
management Each operating unut has us own performance ndicarors and these are regularly reviewed and assessed

c) In addition to the monthly reporting, individual operacing units report certain management informarion more
frequently where 1t 15 considered appropniate

d) Al operaning units report their bank balances twice weekly and a report as produced summansing the Group
position

) The Board and the finance department make frequent visits to all operaung umts These visits include a review
of the internal control system

f) All operating units prepare annual budgets and cash flow forecasts which are reviewed by the Board
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The Combined Code introduced a requirement that the Directors review the effecrivencss of the Group's system of
internal controls, te cover all contrals including financial, operauonal, comphance, and nsk management Following
publicauon of gmdance for the Directors, Internal Coatrol Revised Gwidance for Directors on the Combined Code
{cthe Turnbull gmdance), the Board confirms thac there ts an ongoing process for, and an annual review covering, the
idenuficanon, evaluacon and management of the sigmficant risks faced by the Group, that has been 1n place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts and that this process is regularly
reviewed by the Board and accords with the gutdance The process 1s carried our through, nter aha

a} Group Board meeungs

b) Quarterly subsidiary management meetings

c) Presentanions by subsidiary Chief Exccuave officers to the Board

d) Discussion and review by the Executive Board and the finance department during the several visits per year 1o
indiadual operating unns

l.) DISLI.'ISS]OI'I‘ Wlfh profcss:onnl ﬂl.[vlSOl'S where approprlntc

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The duties of the Audit Commuttee include

a) Monuitor the integnty of financial statements and formal announcements
b) Review the Company’s internal financiai controls
) Make recommendacions in relauen to the reappointment and removal of the external auditor

d) Approve remuneration and rerms of engagement of the external auditor
¢) Review and monttor independence and objectivity of the external auduor

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function, but has resolved, that due to the size of the Group,

this cannot be jusufied on the grounds of cost effectiveness at present

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICIES

The Group agrecs terms and conditions for its business transactions when orders for goods and survices are placed,
ensuring that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and included the relevant terms in contraces where
appropriate These arrangements are adhered to when making payments, subject to the terms and condinons being
met by the suppher At December 31, 2007, Group ¢reditor days amounted to 100 days {2006 97 days)

The holding company does nat have any trade creditors

DIRECTORS STATEMENT

At the date of making this report, each of the Company’s Directors, as ser our on page 30, confirm 1n following

a) Sa far as each Durector 1s aware, there 1s no relevant informanon needed by the Company's Auditors 1n connection
with preparing their repert of which the Company’s Auditors are unaware, and

b) Each Directar has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director 1 order to make himself aware of
any relevant information needed by the Company s Auditors in connecuon with prepartng their zeport and to
establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that mformation

AUDITOR
Qur mdependent audicor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, s willing to centinue 1n office and, accordingly, a resolution 15 to
be proposed at the Annual Meeang for the reappomntment of Grant Thornten UK LLP as auditor to the company

M ] Mousley
Secrerary

March 18, 2008
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The remusneranon committee 15 responsible for making recommendanons on behalf of the Board on the remuneracon
policy with regard to the Company’s executive Directors It consists of the three non-execunve Direcrors

The remuneration committee 15 constituted within che relevant provisions of Sectton B of the Combined Code in

framing its remuneracton policy This report sets out the commuttee’s policy and disclosures on Directors’ remuneraton

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remunerauion levels are set by reference 1o individual performance, expenence and market condiuons wich a view to
providing a package which 1s appropnate for the responsthilities involved

An individual directar’s performance 1s reviewed and assessed constantly throughout the year and speaifically at two
formal meetngs of the remuneration commuctee each year This pracess includes consideration of the financial results
of the Group

The stared policy 15 expected to reman in place for the forthcoming year

COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION
Basic salanes are determuned according to the competiive market for executive directors, taking into account cher

expenence, contribution and performance This determination 1s carried out tnternally
Bonuses and share options are awarded on a discretionary basis in recogninon of indwidual performances during the year

Options granted under the Company's Executive Share Option Schemes are at marker value at the date of grant and
exercisable between a mimmum penod of three years and a masimum pertod of seven years or ten years Opuons are
exercisable if there has been an increase m the Group's carnings per share of at least 2% per annum abave the
growth m the retail prices index over a period of theee years

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

All executive Dhurectors have service agreements which provide for 12 month’s nonce by che Direcror or the
Company There are no provisions for compensation other than the notice peried As from 2004, the independent
non-executive Directors are engaged on annual rolling contracts Their fees are reviewed by the Board

All of the Dirccrors stand for re-election annually ac the Annual Meeung of the Company

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURMN
The following graph charts the total shareholder return of the Company for the last five years
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The index selected for comparnson 1s the FTSE Media and Entertamment index as this was considered to be a broad
representatuon of the Company’s peer group m terms of its size and business
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AUDITED INFORMATION
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The auditors are required to report on the information conramed i this sectton of the remuneration report

The remuneration n respect of each Director who served as a Director dunng the year was as follows

FFES 7 BASIC 2007 2008

NAMF OF DIRFCTOR Sl ARY BENLETLS TOIAI TOTAL
£n0on L0049 £000 £000

L F Orbach 365 12 g4 375
R ] Morley 182 5 187 187
M ] Mousley 210 3 213 204
P Campbell {Non-txcounve) 42 . 42 42
P Waine (Nonr-executive) 30 - 30 30
L Collins {Non execunve) 27 - 27 27
856 27 883 865

Benefits consist of benefits in kind in respect of health and life insurance The remuneration of P Waine 1s £30,000
and for P Campbell and L Colhas it 1s £27,000 for their ongoing roles as non-executive Directors In addinon, P

Campbell recerved £15,000 of consulting fees on an arm’s length basis

Each of the executive Diarectors has a defined contnibunion pension plan During the year contnbunions were made

as follows
2007 2006
L0400 £009
L F Orbach 95 34
R ] Morley 27 26
M ] Mousley 31 30
153 140
SHARE OPTIONS
Details of share oprions of those Directors who served during the year are as follows
At January Exercised At December Exercise Earliest date Expiry
1, 2007 n year 31, 2007 price® of exervise Date
R J Morley 5,000 - 5,000 £1115 2222003 2122010
M ] Mousley 7,500 - 7,500 £0 83 1422006 1322010
7,500 - 7,500 £163 3052007 2992011

* Market price at date of award

No gamns were made by Directors on the exercise of share options 1n the current year or prior year Details of the

performance critena of these options are given above under Components of Remuneration The highest and lowest

prices of the Company's shares during the year were 188 5p and 159 5p respecnively The price at the year end was 171 5p

This report was approved by the Board of Direcrors on March 18, 2008
P Waine, Chairman of Remuneranon Commuttee

39
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of
the directors’ report and the financial statements

The Company 1s tncorporated 1n the State of Delaware, United States and 15 subject 1o the law of that state which
places no requirement for annual reporung to shareholders upon the directors However, since the company has a
listing on the London Stock Exchange and a place of business in the UK, the directors are required to prepare
financial statements which comply with certain provisions which are contaned within the Listing Rules of the UK
Financial Services Authority {the Listing Rules) and UK company law for oversea companies

The company 15 an * oversea” company within the meamng of the Companies Act 1985 The directors have elected to
prepare the group financial statements 1n accordance wich IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and the parent company
financial stacements 1n accordance with UK GAAP

The directors have accepted responsibilicy for preparing group financial statements as required by IFRSs as adopted
by the EU which present fairly the financial posinon and the performance of the group, the Compames Act 1985
provides i relation to such financial statements that references 1n the relevant part of that Act to financial statements
gving a true and fair view are references to their acheeving a fair presentation

The directors have accepted responsibility for preparing parent company financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company

In preparing each of the group and parent company financial scacements, the directors have accepred responsibility to

. select suwable accounning pobeies and chen apply them consistently,

. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

’ for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared i accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU,

. for the parent company financial statemencs, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

subject to any matenial departures disclosed and explained i the parent company financial staterments, and
. prepare the financial stitements on the gong concern basis unless 1t s inappropriate to presume that the group

and the parent company will coneinue i business

The directors have accepted responstbilicy for keeping proper accounung records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any ume the financial posion of the parent company and enable them to ensure that 1ts financial
statements comply with the relevant requirements of UK company law They have general responsibilicy for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and o prevent and detect fraud and
other srregularities

Under applicable kaw, the company 15 responsible for preparing a Directors Report The directors have also accepred
responsibility for prepaning a Directors' Remuneranion Report and Corporate Governance Statement thar comply
with applicable taw and regulations as (f the full requirements were to apply

Tn so far as each of the directors 1s aware

. there 1s no relevant audir informauon of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and

. the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to cstablish that the auditars are awart of that information

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity of the cerporate and financial infurmanon included
on the company’s webstte Legislation in the UK governing the preparanion and disseminanion of financial statements
may differ from legislauon 1n other junsdicaions
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Report of the Independent Auditors
to The Quarto Group, Inc

We have audited the group and parent company finanual statements {the “finanuial statements”} of The Quarto Group,
Inc for the year ended December 31, 2007 which comprise the group income statement, the group and parent company
balance sheets, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of recognised income and expense and the relared
notes These financial statements have been prepared under che accounting poheies set ouc therein

This report 15 made solely to the company in accordance with the terms of our engagement Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we mught state to the company those matters we are engaged to state to them mn this audi report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiliry to anyone
other than the company for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilinies for prepaning the Annual Report and the group financial statements i accordance with

applicable law and Internanional Financial Reportng Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union, and the

parent company financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and UK Accounung Standards (UK Generally !
Accepred Accounung Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities on page 40

Our responsibility 15 to audir che financial scatements 10 accordance with our engagement lecter, and with accordance !
with Internattonal Auditing Standards (UK and Ireland)

Under the terms of our engagement lerter we report o you our opimon as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view and whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes
Act as applicable to oversea companies We also report 1o you whether, in our opimion, the infermatton given in the
Directors’ Report 1s consisient with the financial statements The informaaon given in the Directors’ Report includes
the specific mformauon presented in the financial review that 15 cross-referred from the business review secnion of the
directors report In addinion, we report to you if, 1n our opimion, the Company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not recerved all of the informanon and explanation we require for our audit, or if the informarion

specihied by law regarding director’s remunerauon and other transactions are not disclosed

In additton te our audst of the financial statements, the directors have engapged us to audst the mformation in the
directurs remunezation report that 1s described as having been audired, which the directors have decided to prepare as
\f the Company were required to comply wich the requirements of schedule 7A to the Comparnies Act 1985 They have
also cngaged us to review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with the
nine provisions of the 2006 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of che Financial Services
Aurthority, and we report 1f it does not We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal
control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opimon on the effectiveness of the group's corporate governance
procedures or us nsk and concrol procedures

We read other information contained 1n the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements The other informanon compnses the Chairman's Statement, Review of Operanions and Financial
Review We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent musstatements or matenal

inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur responsibihties do not extend to any other informanon

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audir in accordance with International Standards on Audinng (UK and Ircland) 1ssued by the
Audinng Pracuces Board An audit includes exanunation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statemencs and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audiced [t also includes
an assessment of the sigmficant esumares and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
starements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company's crcumsiances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as 1o obran all the informanon 2nd explanations which we considered

necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance thar che financial statements and

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are frec from matenal musstatement, whether caused by

fraud or other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evatuated the overall adequacy of the presentanon

of mformation m the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be zudied ‘+1
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QFINION
In our opinton

. the group financial statements give a erue and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
of the state of the group’s affairs as at December 31, 2007 and of uts profit for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with che Companies Act 1985 as
applicable to oversea companies and the directors’ remuneration repart has been properly prepared 1n
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, as if the company were required to comply with the requirements
of Schedule 7A to chat Act,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepred
Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at December 31, 2007, and

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act
1985 as applicable to oversea companies

. the informauion given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the finanoal statements

Grant Thernten UK LLP 4’ A & M Uk LL-p

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Londen

March 18, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year Ended December 31, 2007

2007 20056
Nores £000 £000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 3 100,107 93,613
Cost of sales (62,842) (38,926}
GROSS PROFIT 37,265 34,687
Other opuratng ncome 321 281
Distnbution costs {3,778) (3,586)
Admunistrative expenses before amorttzanon
of non-current intangibles and non-recurring 1tems (23,248) {21,825)
Amornzanon of non-current intangibles 1,312) (1,387)
Non-recurring items
Bad debt - (1,238)
Excess recovery of aborted acquisitton costs 370 -
Total administrauve expenses (24,190} {24,450)
PROFIT FROM QOPERATIONS BEFORE AMORTIZATION
QF NONCURRENT INTANGIBLES AND NON-RECURRING ITEMS 10,560 9,557
OPERATING PROFIT 5 9,618 6,932
Finance income 7 412 298
Finance costs 8 (3,321} 12,593)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,709 4,637
Tax 9 (1,697} {1,202)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,012 3,435
Atteibutable to
Equiry holders of che parent 4,243 2,800
Minonty interest 769 635
5,012 3,435
EARMNIMGS PER SHARE
From continuing operations
Basic i0 21 6p 14 3p
Dituzed 10 21 ip 13 9p
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense Year Ended December 31, 2007

Exchange differences an translation of foreign operanons
Change in the fair value of cash flow hedges

NET EXPENSE RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the parent
Mtinonty interest

2007 2006
£0006 L£000
116 (1,222}
(1,110) -
{994} (1,222}
5,012 3,435
4,018 2,213
3,249 1,578
769 635
4,018 2,213
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwall
Orher 1ntangible assecs
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred rax assets

Total non-currenrt assets

CLRRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets Pre-publication costs
Invenrortes
Tax receivable
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assers

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowing
Trade and other payables
Tax payable

Tatal current habilities

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Medium and long term borrowings
Deferred rax habilities
Derivative financial insteuments
Orther payables

Total non-current habilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MNET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Pard n surplus

Retained deficat and other reserves

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

MINORITY INTEREST
TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

11
12
13
21

15
16

17
18

23
24

19
21
20

25,26
26
26

26

2007
£000

18,307
4,194
7,445

763

30,709

25,079
15,696
32,285
17,577

90,637
121,346

2,760)
(32,572)
(1,547)
{36,879)

{58,190)
13,273)
(1,110)

(29)

{62,602)

{99,481)

21,865

1,162
21,768
(5,025)

17,905

3.960
21,865

2006
£000

9,710
2,987
7,501

198

20,396

20,919
13,943

178
27,022
13,929

75,996
96,392

{17,800}
(25,981)

(1,437)
(45,218)

(27,121)
(4,404)

21)
(31,546}

(76,764)

19,628

1,162
21,740
(6,951}

15,951

3,677
19,628

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Durectors and authonsed for 1ssue on March 18, 2008

They were signed on s behalf by

o
™
M ] Mousley N /—)

Director
March 18, 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Year ending
December 31, 2007

07 2006
Nores £000 £000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,012 3,435
Adjustments for
Net finance costs 2,909 1,295
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,038 959
Tax expense 1,697 1,202
Amoruzanon of non-current mtangible assets 1,312 1,387
Amoruzaton of pre-publicanion costs 8416 7,461
Movenent in fair value of derivatuves - 1254)
Equuty settled share — based payment expense 5 7
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22 {87)
Operaung cash flows before movements in working capucal 20,411 16,405
Decrease (increase) in inventories 1,527 {1,307)
Increasc n receivables {1,674) [672)
Increase (decrease) in payables 1,384 (267)
Cash generated by operanons 21,648 14,159
Income taxes paid (798) (611)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 20,850 13,548
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest recerved 412 298
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 119 933
[nvestment 1n pre publication costs (10,481) (8,444)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {(688) {864)
Acquisition of subsidianes (17,941) (89)
MNET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (28,579} (8,166}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (1,355) {1,291)
Interest payments {3,005} 2,797)
Proceeds on issue of share capital 56 S8
New bank loans rased 32,189 583
Repayment of bank loans {15,9186) -
Dividends paid to minoriry interest {226) {244)
MNET CASH FROM (LISED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 11,743 (3,693)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,014 1,689
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,110 11,899
Foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents (15) {1,478)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 18 16,109 12,110
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

| GENERAL INFORMATION

The Quarto Group, Inc 1s a company incerporated in the Stace of Delaware, United States The address of che
regestered office 15 gaven on page 30 The nature of the group’s operations and us principal acovinies are ser our in
Note 4 and 1n the Directors’ Repore on page 33

These financal statements are presented in pounds sterling because that 1s the currency of the prumary economic
environment 1n whuch the group operates Foreign aperations are included 1n accordance wath the policies set out i Note 2

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group’ ) The parent Lompany financia! statements present informanon about the company as a separate enttry and
not abour s group

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the direcrors in accordance wich Internanonal
Financial Reportung Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”) The Company has elected to prepare us
parent company financial starements 1 accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 77 to §2

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the historrcal cost basis, except that the derivative financial instruments are
stated ar fair value Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated ac the lower of previous carrymng
amount a2nd fair value less costs ro sell

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with [FRS requires management to make judgements, esnmates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilies, income and
expenses The wstumates and assouated assumphions are based on historcal expertence and vanous other factors that
arc believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances Actual results may differ from thise esumares

The estimares and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongotng basis Revisions to accounung esumates are
recognised 1n the pertod 1n which the esumare 1s revised if the revision affects only that period or in the peniod of the
revision and furure periods 1f the revision affecss both current and future peniods Judgements made by Management
in the applicauon of IFRS, that have a significant effect on the financial statements and accounung estumates are
discussed 1n Notes 11,15,17,19 and 21

The accountng policies ser out below have been applied 10 all periods presented The Group has changed the
classification of certain shipping costs from distributton costs to cost of sales to more accuracely reflect the nature of
the bustness Prior year comparatives have been reclassified to reflect this change

Basis of consohdanon

The Group financial statements include the results of the company and all of its subsidiary undertakings A subsidiary
i an entity conerolled, directly or mdirectly, by the Group Contro! 15 the power to govern the finanaal and operating
policies of the entiry so as to obtain benefits from 1ts acuvities The financial scatements of subsidiaries are included in
the canseltdared financial statements from che date thae control commences unnl the date thac conirol ceases

Intragroup balances and any uncealised gains and losses or income and expenses ansing from intragroup transactions

are chminaced 1n prepanng the consolidated financial statements

The nterest of minonty sharcholders on an acquision 1s 1inally measured at the minonity's proportion of the nex

fair value of the assets, hiabilities and conuingent habilities recognised
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

Business combinauons, tntangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method Goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisinon over che fair value to the group of the net assets and any conungent habilines acquired

In respect of acquisinons prior to January I, 2004, goodwill i1s included on the basis of us deemed cost which
represents the amount recorded previously under UK GAAP

Goodwill anising on acquisitions 1s stated at cost less any accumulared impairment losses From Janvary 1, 2004,
goodwill 15 allocared 1o cash-generating unuts and 1s no tonger amortized bur 1s tested annually for impairment

The businesses identified are individual cash-generanng units Poor to January 1, 1998, goodwll was written off to
reserves in the year of acquisiion

Other intangible assets, such as backlists, that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulared

amoruzanon and impairment [osses Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets s expensed as incurred

Amorazation of intangible assets 15 charged to the income statement on a straight hine basis over the esumated useful ‘
lives of intangible assets The amortization period for non-contracrual relanonships 1s 2 5 years and for backlsts 1s |
between 4 and 10 years

[mpairment of tangible and intangible assets including goodwill

The carrying amount of the Group s assets s reviewed at cach balance sheet date ro determine whether there 15 any
indicanion of imparrment If any such indicanon exists, the assct 5 recoverable amount 1s esumated For goodwill, the
recoverable amount 15 esumated ar cach balance sheet date An impairment loss 1s recogmsed whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or 1ts cash-generaung umrt exceeds its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recogmsed in the
mcome scarement

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents invoiced value of sales less anucipated returns {based upon historical returas experiencey,
uxcluding customer sales taxes and iater group sales Revenucs are recognised on desparch of goods and when the
sgmhicant risks and rewards of ownorship have been passed to the buyer

Leasing

Where assets are acquired under finance leases (including hire purchase contraces), which confer nights and obhganons
similar to thuse attached to owned assets, the amount represenung the outnight purchase price of such assers ts included
in tangible fixed assets All other leases are classified as operaung leases Depreciauon is provided in accordance with the
accounting policy below The capical element of future finance lease payments 1s included in credirors and the interest
element 1s charged o the income statement over the peniod of the lease 1 proporuion to the capiral element outstanding
Expenditure on operaung leases 1s charged to the income statement on a straight Iine basis

Foregn currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate rulmg at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and labilines denomunated in foreign currencies at the batance sheet dare are translated at the exchange
rate ruling at chat date with any exchange differences ansing on retranslanion being recognised in the income statement

The assets and labilitres of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on
consolidation, are translated 1nto srerling ar exchange rates ruhing ac the balance sheet date The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations are translated into sterling at average annual exchange rates Foreign exchange
differences ansing on recranslavon, since Janwary 1, 2004, the date of (ransition to IFRS, are recogmised directly in a
separate translation reserve within equicy
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

Reurement benefir costs
The Group’s pension costs relace to individual pension plans and are charged to the income statement as they fall due

Taxauon

Tax on the profic or loss for the year comprises both current and deferred tax Current tax 1s the expected tax
payable on the taxahle income for the year, using tax rates enacied or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustments (o tax payable in respect of previous years Deferred tax 1s provided using che balance sheet
habiity method, providing for wmporary differonces berween the carrying amounts of assets and habilinies for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxacton purposes Not all temporary differences give nise to
deferred tax assess / iabihties A deferred tax asset 15 recogmised only to the extent that it 1s probable thar futare
raxable profits will be avatlable agamnst which the asser can be unhsed

Property, plant and equpment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciauon and any provision for
impairments in value The Group recogmuses in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment the subsequent
costs of replacing part of such items when there arc future economic benefits Al other costs are recogmsed 1n the
Income statement as an expense as they are incurred

Depreciation 1s provided on a straighe-line basis to wrue off the cost, less the esnmated residual value, of property,
plant and cquipment over therr estmated useful lives Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have separate
lives, they are accounted for and depreciated as separate items Residual values are reassessed on an annuatl basis
Land 1s not depreciated

Esumated useful lives are as follows

Frechold and long leasehold property — 50 years
Short leasehold property - over the period of the lease
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles ~ 4 to 10 years
Fixtures and fitungs ~ 3 o 7 years

Certain wtems of property, plant and equipment, that had been revalued to fair value on or before January 1, 2004, the date
of transition to IFRS', are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amounr ar the daze of that revaluauon

Assers hedd under Bnance kases are depreaated over ther expected useful hives on the same basis a» owned assets or,
where sharter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gan or loss anising on the disposal or recirement of an assets derermined as the difference between che sales
proceeds and the carrymg amount of the asser and 1s recognised in income

Pre-publication costs

Pre pubhication costs represent direct costs incurred in the development of bock ttles prior to thetr publication These
costs are carried forward 1n current meangible assets where the book ticle will generare furure economic benefits and
costs can be measured reliably These costs are amornzed upon publicatton of the book ntle over esnmated econorme
lives of 3 years or less, being an cstimate of the expected operanng cycle of a book ttle The invesement m pre-
publicanion has been disclosed as part of the invesung acnvines 1n the cash flow statement

Inventoris

Inventory 1s valued at the lower of cost, including an appropniate poruon of overheads, and net reahsable value, on a
first wn, first ouc basis Ner realisable value is the esumated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
esnmated costs of complenion and selling expenses

Financial tnstruments

Fancial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the group becomes a parry
to the contractual provistons of the instrument
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

Trade receivables

Trade recevables do not carry any wncerest and are stated at theur fair value, being their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for esumated irrecoverable amounts Trade receivables impairment 15 inecluded within
administratrve expenses in the consohidared income statement

Financial Assets

Financial assets other than hedging mstruments are divided mto the following categories
* loans and receivables

»  financial assets ar fair value through profit or loss

Financiat assecs are assigned to the different categories on ininal recogmuen, depending on the charactensucs of the
instrument and its purpose A financial instrument's category 1s relevant for the way it s measured and whether any
resulting tncome and expenses 1s recognised 1in profit or loss or directly in equity See Note 35 for a summary of the
Group’s finanaial assets by caregory

Generally, the Group recogmses all financial assets using trade date accountng An assessment of whether a financial
asset 1s impaired 15 made at least at each reporting date All income and expense relating to financial assets, with the
exception of trade receivables which 1s described above, are recognised 1n the income statement line wtem “finance

costs” or “finance income”, respectively

Loans and recervables are non-derivatve financial assets with fixed or determunable payments that are not quoted in
an active marker After minal recogmition, at fawr value, these are measured ac amornzed cost using the effecuve
interest method, less provision for impairment Any change in their value 1s recognised 1n profit or loss The Group's
trade and most other recervables fall into this category of financial instruments Discounting, however, 1s omutted
where the effect of discounting 15 immatenal

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due at the balance
sheet date or when objective evidence 15 recerved that a speafic counterparty will defaule All other receivables arc
ruviewed for impawrment 1n groups, which are ditermined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty
and other available features of shared credit risk charactenisucs, of any The percentage of the write down s then
based on recent historical counterparry default rates for each idenufied group

Any gain or loss anising from denvanve financial instruments 1s based on changes in fair value, which 1s determined
by direct reference ro active market transactions or using a valuation technque where no acnve marker exsts

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or ather host contracts are treated as separate derivanives when
their nisks and characrenistucs are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
carried at fair value, with gans and losses reported 1n the income statement

Financial Liabilices

The Group's financial habalimes include borrowings, trade and other payabies (including finance lease habilives),
which are measured at amortized (ost using the effective interest rate method A summary of the Group's financial
liabilieies by category 1s given in Note 35

All of the Group’s derivauve financial tnstruments thar are not designated as hedging instruments in accordance wich
the strice conditions explained under the heading *Denvanve financial mstruments and hedge accounting”, are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss by definttion
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

Financtaf lsabthues and equity

Financial habitines and equity instrumencs are classified according to the substance of che contracrual arrangements entered
into An equity mstrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deductng all of
us habthnes Equty instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of direet 1ssue costs

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest methods

Finance income

Finance income comprises mterest recervable, which 1s recognised 1n the income statement as it accrues using the
effective interest method, and dividend income, which 1s recogiised 1n the income statement when the right o receve
payment 15 estabhshed

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpaoses of the statement of cash flows, cash and wash equivalents compnses cash balanues, call deposits and
bank overdrafts that form an integral parr of the Group’s cash management processes

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated ac their fair value, berng theirr nominal value

Bank borrowings

Interest branng bank loans and averdrafrs are recorded at fair value on unal recogmtion, net of ransaction costs
Finance charges and 1ssue costs are accounted for ar gmortized cost on the effective interest rate method and are added
to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not sertled in the pertod in which they anse

Denvauve financial instruments and hedge accounung

The Group's activities expose it prunanly to the financial nisks of changes m foreign currency exchange rates and
nterest rates The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The Group dous not use
denvative financizl mstruments for speiulanve purposcs

The use of financial derivatives 1s governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of durectors, which provide
written principles on the use of financial denivatives

Where a derivanve financial instrumenc 15 designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recogmsed asset or
Liability, or a hughly probable forecasted transaction, the effecuve part of any gain or loss on the dervative financial
instrument 15 recegrused direccly 1 equity If the cash flow of a firm commiument or forecasted transaction results in
the recogmtion of an asset or a hiability, then, at the ume the asset or liability 1s recogmised, the assomared gains or
losses on the dervanve that had previously been recognised in equety are included i minial habuity, amounts deferred
i equity are recogmsed in the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged 1tem affects nex profic or loss

Changes in the fair vatue of denvauve financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogmsed 1n
the income statement as they anse

Hedge accounnng 15 disconunued when the hedging insirument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no
longer quahifies for hedge accounung At that ume, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogmsed
1n equuty 15 retained in equicy unt the forecasted transacoon occurs If a hedged transacton 1s no longer expected to
occur, the ner cumulative gain or loss recognised in equuty 1s transferred ro ner profit or loss for the perrod

Dernatnes embedded 1n other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and charactenistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not

carried at fasr value, with gains and losses reported tn the mncome statement

ol
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Compound Financial Instcuments

Convertible loan notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to share capatal az the opnon of the holder, where the number of shares
1ssued does not vary with changes tn cheir faur value, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
Transacnion costs that relace to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the hability and equiry
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds The equity component of the converuble notes is calculated
as the excess of the 1ssue proceeds over the present value of the future interest and principal payments, discounted at
the market rate of interest applicable 1o sumilar liabihuies that do not have a conversion opuion The tncerest expense
recogmused 1n the income statement 1s calculated using the effective interest rate method

Treasury Shares
Treasury shares represent holdings of the Company’s own equity tnstruments No gam or loss is recogmised in the
profit and loss account on the purchase, 1ssue or cancellation of these equity instruments Consideration pawd or

recewved 15 recogmused directly tn equity

Share-based payments

The Group has apphed the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based payments In accordance with the ransinon
provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied o all gran:s of equity instruments after Novernber 7, 2002 that were unvested as
of January 1, 2005

The Group 1ssues equity settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity setrled share based paymenis are
measured ar fair value at the date of grant The fair value, determined ac che grant date, of equity settled-share based
payments 15 expensed on a scraighe bine basts over the vestng period, based on the Group’s esumate of shares that
will eventually vest

The fair value of employee share option grants 1s calculated using a binonua!l model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted The value of the charge 15 adjusted o reflect expected and
actual levels of options vesung No stgmiftcant balances artse, therefore the disclosure requiraments of TFRS 2 have
not buen shown, duc to the unmawnality of the accounts involved

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recogmsed in the income statement n the pertod 1n which they are 1ncurred

Financial sk management
The principal risk facrors faced by the Group are disclosed 1n Note 17 and on page 32

Equuy Instruments |

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Adopted [FRS not yet apphed
The following Adopted TFRSs and mierpretations were available for carly apphicanon but have not been apphed by
the Group in these financial statements

IFRIC 7 Applying the Reassessment Approach under 1AS 19

IFRIC 8 Scape [FRS 2

IFRIC 10 Reassessment of embedded denvatives ‘
IFRIC 11 Interim Financial Reporung and Impatrment

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangement 1
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes ‘
IFRIC 14 The Limit on Defined Benefic Assets Minimum Funding Requirements and thetr unteraction }
iFRS 8 Operating segments ‘
IFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinattons

TAS 27 (Revised} Consolidated and separate financial statements

TAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs
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3 REVENUE
An analysis of the group’s revenue 1s as follows

Sales of goods

Revenue

Other operating income
Finance income

Total income

4 BUSINESS AND GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

007
£000

100,107
100,107
321
412
100,840

2006
£000

23,613
93,613
281
298
94,192

For management purposes, the group 1s currently organised into two business segments Co-edinon Publishmg and

Publishing These segments are the basis on which the group reports its primary segment information

The information about these segments 1s presented below

CQ EDITICM CO ECITION
PFUBLISHING PUBLISHING  PUBLISHING PUBLISHING TOTAL TOTAL
2097 2006 €07 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 coeg £000 £009 £000
REVENUE
Tortal sales 40,287 40,307 61,732 55,210 102,012 95,517
Incer-segment revenue (1,907) {1,200) 5 (4) (1,912}  {1,904)
Fxternal sales 38,380 18,407 61,727 §5,206 100,107 93,611
Segment resule before amoruzanon of
non-current intangbles and non-recurnng costs 5,215 5,277 6,435 5,245 11,650 10,522
Amoruzauon of nan-current intangbles (12) {12} (1,300} {1,375} {1,312) {1,387)
Bad debt - {1,085) - (153) - {1,238)
Segment resulc 5,203 4,180 5,135 3,717 10,338 7,897
Excess recovery of aborted acquisition costs 370 B
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,050} {963)
Profit from operations 9,618 6,932
Investment 1ncome 412 298
Finance costs (3,321) (2,593)
Profic before tax 6,709 4,637
Tax (1,697)  (1,202)
Profit after tax 5,012 1435

Inter-segment revenues are on an arms length basis
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4 BUSINESS AND GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

CQ EDITICN CO-ECITION
PUBLISHING PUBLESHING  PUBLISHING  PUBLISHING TOTAL TOTAL
2007 2006 007 2006 2007 2006
€000 £000 €00 £000 £600 £000
Caprtal additions 177 242 511 622 688 864
Depreciation 309 07 719 652 1,038 959
Amortization of non-current intangibles 12 12 1,300 1,375 1,312 1,387
Investment tn pre publication costs 6,460 5,249 4021 3,195 10,481 B.444
Amartizauon of pre-pubheation costs 5,132 4,783 3,284 2,678 8,416 7,461

There are no other significant non-cash expenses

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Segment assets 40,853 34,867 62,153 46,966 103,006 81,833
Unallocated corporate assets 18,340 14,559
Consohidaced rotal assets 121,346 96,392
LIABILITIES

Segment liablittes 16,121 13,071 16,480 12,931 32,601 26,002
Unallocated corporate habilines 66,880 50,762
Consolidated total habihities 99 481 76,764

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
The following table provides an analysts of the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective of the ongin of the goods

Revenug Revenue

2007 2006

00 £000

United Kingdom 16,385 16,668
United States of America 48,750 43,070
Australia and Far East 19,605 18,384
Europe 11,266 11,860
Rest of the World 4,101 3,631
100,107 93,613

The following 15 an analysts of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital additons analysed by the grographical
area in which the assets are located

( apnial Capital

Assets Assels Addinons Additions

1007 2006 2007 2006

L0000 £000 0o £000

United Kingdom 39,192 32,746 343 567
United States of America 45,201 31,362 218 139
Orther 18,613 17,725 127 158

103,006 81,833 638 864
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5 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from operations has been arnived ar after charging/(crediting)

Loss {profit} on sale of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net foreign currency exchange losses

Amorazation of non current intangibles
Amortization of pre-publication costs

Scaff costs {see Note 6)

Auditors’ remuneranion {sec below)

Cost of inventory recogmsed as an expense

Bad debe

Excess recovery of aborted acquisition costs

Auditors remuneracion
Fees payable to the Company s audwor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts
Fees payable ta the Company’s audizor and 1ts associates for other services

The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation
All other services

6  STAFF COSTS

The average monthly number of employees (including executive direccors) was

Their aggregaie remuneracon comprised
Wages and salanes

Socal securiy costs

Other pension costs

Equuity settled share based payment expense

Directors’ remuneration 1s disclosed in Note 32

7  FINANCE INCOME

Interest income on finanaal assets camed at amoruzed cost

2007
£000

22
1,038
62
1,312
8,416
16,472
121
24,110

(3709

121

06~

Numbur

511

EQUD

14,778
1,147
542

5

16,472

007
0N

2006
£000

(87}
959
139
1,387
7,461
14,958
156
23,641
1,238

30

105
21

156

In0é
Number

£000

13,343
1,093
515

14,958

2006
£000

298

o
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8  FINANCE COSTS

2007 2006

£000 £000

Interest expense for borrowings at amoruzed cost 3,289 2,560

Interest expense for finance lease arrangements 32 33

Total finance costs 3321 2,593

9 TAX

2007 2006

£a00 £000

Current tax 1,074 878
Deferred tax (Note 21)

Currene year ongination and reversal of temporary differcnces 6213 324

1,697 1,202

Corporaton tax on UK profits 15 calculated ar 30% (2006 30%) of the esirmated assessable profic for the year
Taxation for other junsdicuons 1s calculated at the rates prevatling in che respective junsdictions

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2007 2007 2006 2006
Lo0o e L0060 Ya
Proftt before tax 6,709 4,637

Tax at the UK corporation tax race of 30%
(2006 30%) 2,013 1,391
Tax cffect of unlisation of tax losses

not previously recognised (125} {127)
Tax losses not utilised - 100
Effect of different rax rartes of subsidhanes
operaung tn other jurisdicuons (155) (157)
Orther, including tax effect of expenses thar
are not deducnble in determining taxable profit {36) {5)
Tax expense and eflective tax race for the year 1,697 25 3% 1,202 259%
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
From conunumg operations

The calcularton of the basic and diluted carmings per share 1s based on the following data

Earnings

Earmings for the purposes of baste earmings per share being net
profit artnburable to equity holders of the parent

Effect of dilunve potential ordinary shares

Interest on loan notes [net of rax)

! Earnings for the purposes of diluted earmings per share

| Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
. for the purposcs of basic carnings per sharc
Lffect of diluave porencial ordinary shares
Share opuons
Dilunive loan note

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of difuted earmings per share

Rasic

Diluted

Adjusted ecarnings
Earmings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net
profit attributable to equity holders of the parenc
Amornzaton of non-cureent mrangibles (net of tax and mimoruy interest)
Bad debt {net of tax and minority incerest)
Excess recovery of aborted acquisitton costs (net of tax)

Earnmngs for the purposes of adjusted earnuigs per share
Effect of ditunve porenual ordinary shares
Interest on loan notes (net of tax)

Farnings for the purposcs of diluted carmings per share

Basic

Diluted

‘ Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

2007 2006
£0G0 £000
4,243 2,800
26 45
4,269 1,845
Number Number
19,643,747 19,563,900
55,643 104,651
537,144 855,015
20,236,534 20,523,566
207 2006
pence pence
21 6p 14 3p
21 tp 13 9
4,243 2,300
905 962

- 818

(242) -
4,906 4,580
26 45
4,932 4,625
2067 2006
pence pence
250p 23 4p
24 4p 22 5p

®

57
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Il GOQODWILL
£000
Cost
At January 1, 2006 10,317
Exchange differences (696)
Recognised on acquisitions 89
At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2007 9,710
Exchange differences 219
Recogmsed on acquisinons 8,378
At December 31, 2007 18,307
Carrying amount
At December 31, 2007 18,307
At December 31, 2006 9,710
At January 1, 2006 10,317
Impairment tests for cash generaung umits contaimng goodwill
The following units have significant carrying amounts of goodwll
07 2006
LOO0 £000
MBI 8,272
CPi 3,255 3,305
Premier 2,138 1,943
Marshall 1,861 1,861
Others 2,781 2601
18,307 9,710

The recoverable amount of each cash generauing umit {* GGU™) 1s hased on value 1 use basis The key assumpuions
used 1n the value in use calculatons were

Discount rate, based on a nsk free race in the range of 6 1% to % 7%, which reflects current assessmenes of the ime
value of money

Cash flow projections, have been adjusted for risks specific to the CGUs for nexr year based on the most recent
financial budgets, and are extrapolated over a further 20 years

Cash flow growth rates, based on a growth rate of 2% 1o reflect nsk

Changes mn sclling prices and direct costs, based on past expertence and expectations of future changes in the market
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12 OTHER INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At January 1, 2006
Exchange differences

At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2007
Acquired on acquisiion of subsidiaries
Exchange differences

At December 31, 2007

Amoruzation

Ar January 1, 2006

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2007
Exchange differences

Charge for the year

At December 31, 2007

Carrying Amount
At December 31, 2007

At December 31, 2006

At January 1, 2006

Nan
Contractual
Relatonships Backlists Toral
£000 £000 £o00
395 6,497 6,892
(35) (707} (742)
360 5,790 6,150
150 2,400 2,550
27 (64} {(37)
537 8.126 8,663
175 1,875 2,050
{11} (263) (274)
196 1,191 1,387
360 2,803 3,163
26 32} (6}
20 1,292 1,312
406 4,063 4,469
131 4,063 4,194
- 2,987 2,987
220 4,622 4,842

HY
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13 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Plant
Leasehoid Equipment Fixtures
Freehold Property and Motor and
Property Improvements Vehieles Fittings Tortal
£0¢0 £000 £000 £000 £000

Group
Cost or valuation
At January 1, 2006 5,359 987 6,140 1,239 13,725
Exchange differences - (82) (263) {63) (410}
Additions . 264 751 87 864
Disposals {635) (364) (403) (64) {1,486}
At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2007 4,704 567 6,225 1,197 12,693
Exchange differences ] {4 19 17} 13
Addinons - 60 451 177 688
Subsidianies acquired 250 - 2 101 353
Disposals - {108) {403) 171) {582)
At December 31, 2007 4,955 515 6,304 1,397 13,171
Depreciation
At January 1, 2006 295 432 3,752 713 5,192
Exchange differences - (63) (202) {54) {319}
Charge for the year 55 92 627 185 959
Disposals {39 {161) (386) {54} (640}
At December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2007 311 300 3,791 790 5,192
Exchange differences . (2) 2 {5) {5)
Charge for the year 58 106 711 163 1,038
Disposals - {21) {346) (62) (499}
At December 31, 2007 369 313 4,158 846 5,726
MNee book value
At December 31, 2007 4,586 202 2,146 511 7,445
At December 31, 2006 4,393 267 2,434 407 7,501

The net book value of plant, cquipment and motor vehiles included £980,000 (2006 £1,230,000) 1n respect of assets held under hure
purchase contracts The deprecianon charged on these assets dunng che year was £242,000 (2006 £170,000)

The total cost of frechold property compnses £2,961,000 in respece of buildings and £1,994,000 tn respect of land A frechold
property, with a net book value of £2,040,000, 1s secured agamst a mortgage

As stated in the accounung policy note on page 49, the Directors have chosen to hold the cast of freehold propernies at previous
valuations on transitton to International Financial Reporung Standards The cost of frechold property held at previous valuations
comprises buildings of £1,593,000 and tand of £1,321,000 The principal frechold property in the UK, with a historical cost of
£382,000, was revalued on the basis of an open markes value for exasting use at December 31, 1989 by Conway Kersh, independent
Professional Valuers The valuation was £1 7 million but the Directors ascribed a value of £1 4 mullion, on the grounds of prudence
The valuation was in accordance with RICS Statements of Asset Valuauon Praciice and Guidance Notes

0O
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the sigmficant investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation and proporuon of

ownership interest 1s given in Norte 4 to the company’s separate financial staternents All of these subsidiaries are
included 1n the consolidated resules

[5

INTANGIBLE ASSETS-PRE-PUBLICATION COSTS

Cost

At January 1

Exchange differences

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions

Disposals

At December 31

Amortization

At January 1
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At December 31

Carrying amounts

2007
£000

28,748
{2)
2,084
10,481
6,220)

35,091

T

7,829
3
8,418
{6,220}
10,012

25,079

2006
£000

30,198
(1,625)

8,444
(8,269)

28,748

9,190
(553)
7,461

{8,269)
7,829

20,919

The assessment of the useful hife of pre-publicauion costs and amortizaton 1avolve a significant amount of

judgement based on historical trends and tnanagement esumates of future potential sales, n accordance with

the accounting policy stated in Note 2 An overstatement of usefu! lives could result in excess amounts being

carried forward 1n intangible assets that otherwise would have been written off to the income statement in an

earher peniod Reviews are performed regularly 1o assess the recoverability of she carrying amouns

16

INVENTORIES

Finished goods
Work 1n progress

Raw materials

2007
£000

14,824
433
439

15,696

2006
£000

12,910
415
623

13,948

6r1
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Other recewvables and prepayments
Fair value of dersvatives

The average credit period on sales of goods 15 72 days (2006 79 days)

All of the Group's trade and other recervables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment Certain trade

2007
L£o00

27,595
4,690

32,285

2006
£000
24,980
1,788
254

27,022

recervables were found to be impaired and a proviston of £1,169,00¢ (2006 £1,755,000) has been recorded accordingly

The impaired trade recetvables are compames which are expertencing crading difficuluies

In addition, some of the unimpatired trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date  The age of financial assets

past due but not impaired 15 as follows

Less rhan one month

More than one month but less than two months
More than two months but less than three months
More than three months bur less than six monchs
More than six months

The Group has nor provided against these recewvables as there has nor been a significant change n credr

the Group believes they are sull recoverable No collateral 15 held over these balances

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of year
Acquisinon of subsidianies
Amounts written off i the year
Amounts recovered dunng che year
Exchange difference

Increase in allowance recognised m profit or loss

Balance art end of the year

2047 2006
L0600 £000
2,894 2,614
1,333 1,052
423 542
156 182
97 80
4,903 4,470
1 quality and
2007 2006
£000 £000
1,755 967
173 -
{1,533) {749)
201 66
20 {77}
553 1,548
1,169 1,755

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEFVABLES {conunued}

Credn nsk

The group’s prncipal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and orher recervables which represent the

group’s maximum exposure to credit nisk in relavton to financial assers

The group’s cred risk s primanly acertbutable to its trade recervables The amounts presented in the balance sheet are

net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the group's management based on prior expenience and their

assessment of the current economic environment

The credit risk on hquid funds and derivauve financial instruments 1s Jemited because the counterparties are banks with

high credit-ratings assigned by mnternanonal credit-raung agencies

The proup has no significant concentration of credic nisk, with exposure sprezd over a large number of counterparties

and customers

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances
Short term deposits

Bank overdraft (Note 23}

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement

The carrying amount of these asscts approximates therr fair value

The effective mterest rates on bank balances and short term deposits was 4 0% (2006 4 1%)

19 MEDIUM AND LONG TERM LOANS

Bank loans

Loan note

Obhganons under finance leases (sce Note 22)

The borrowings (excluding obligations under finance leases) are repayable as follows

On demand or within one year
[n the second year
In che third to fifth years inclusive

Alfter five years

Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months

{shown under current habiliuies)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2007
A000
10,776
6,501
17,577
{1,468)
16,109

e ——c—

2067
£000

58,103

58,103
87

58,190

m——nsc———

2,425
134
41,339
16,630

60,528

(2,425)
58,103

2006
£000
8,412
5,517
13,929
(1,819)
12,110

2006
£000

25,902
842

26,744
377

27,12

17,436
976
403

25,365

44,180

{17,436)
26,744

63
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19 MEDIUM AND LONG TERM LOANS {contmued)
Weighted Average time

average  over which

Fixed rate Vanable rate interest rate  interest rate

Foia!  borrowings borrowings  for hxed rate 15 fixed
£oco £000 £000  horrowings % Manths
US dollar borrowings 47,706 25,452 22,254 & B% 67
Other currency borrowings 12,822 - 12,822 -
As at December 31, 2007 60,528 25,452 35,076 6 8% 67
US dollar borrowings 30,166 16,148 14,018 4 4% 7
Other currency borrowings 14,014 . 14,014 -
As at December 31, 2006 44,180 16,148 28,032 4 4% 7

The vanable rare borrowings bear interest by reference to LIBOR plus a margin
At December 31, 2007, undeawn borrowing facihines totaled £29,601,000 (2006 £45,334,000)
The Directors estumate the fair value of the Group s borrowings to be equal 10 book value, by reference to market rares

The abave borrowings carry interest at commercial res ranging from 2 0% 1o 9 7% Bank loans include £806,000
{2006 £940,000) which 1s sceured on a frechold property, with a carrying value of £2,040,000 (2006 £2,066,000)
All other bank loans ary unsecured The loan note 1s US$ 1,650,000, 15 converuble mnto 537,144 shares of common
stock, and 15 repayable on August 4, 2008

The Group has a US$115m (2006 USS30m) syndicated bank facility which expires on June 12,2012 [n addinon,
the group has an aight year floating rate of US$50m (2006 USS50m} These facilicies are subject to chree principal
covenants, nanety

{a} Total consolidaced ner indebtedness shall not exceed 3 umes (proforma) EBITDA This measure amounted to
£21,334,000 giving 2 maximum net indebtedness of £64,002,000

{b) The consohidated operatng profit before exceprional 1tems and goodwill amarnizanon shall exceed three tmes
net terest payable For the year ended December 31, 2007, net interest payable was 3 63 umes covered under
this covenant

{¢) The consohdated operanag profit before goodwill amortzation shall exceed 1 5 tumes net interest payable
For the year ended December 31, 2007, net interest payable was 3 76 umes covered under chis covenant
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

In the reporting perieds under review, other financial assetsthabihnes compnse denvanve financial instruments as follows

2007 2006
£O00 £000
Currenr financial assets
Dertvarive financial assets — interest rate swap - 254
Non cureeat financtal liabhtes
Derivauve financial instruments = interest rate swaps 1,110 -

The Group's activities expose it prumanly to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates The Group uses interest rare swap contracts to hedge the interest rate exposure on US Dollar vanable
rare borrowings of $49,000,000 The Group does not use derivanve financial instruments for speculative purposes
All tnterest rate swaps have been designated as hedging instruments tn cash flow hedges in accordance with IAS 39

21 DEFERRED TAX
The following are the major deferred tax lkabilines and assets recogrused by the group and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporting period

Amount Provided

G607 2006
L0000 £000
Deferred taxatton prowvided mn the financial starements 15 as follows
Excess of caputal allowances over deprecianon = UK 224 264
Praviston on property revaluation - UK 284 284
Qther temporary differences - UK 2,499 2,570
3,007 3,118
Intangible assets - US - (52)
Provisions — US - 1,050
Other overseas temporary differences 266 288
3,273 4,404
Deferred taxation assets
Other temporary differences - Other overseas {123) {198)
Tntangible assets - US (834)
Provisions = US 194 .
{763) {198)
Net deferred taxaton labihty 2,510 4,206

The movement on the net provision for deferred taxaton 1s as follows

Amount Provided

2007 2006

£G00 £000
Net proviston at January 1 4,206 4,079
Exchange difference through reserves 15) {197)
Acquisitions {2,304) -
Charge 10 income and expenditure account 623 324
Net provision at December 31 2,510 4,206

0O5H
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21 DEFERRED TAX (conunued)

At the balance sheet dare, the group has unused tax losses of £1,977,000 {2006 £2,339%,000) available for offset
agawnst future profits A deferred tax asset has not been recogmised in respect of such losses, due to the unpredictabihity
of future profit streams

Included 1n unrecognised tax losses are losses of £1,620,000 {2006 £1,450,000) that will expire in the following years

2007 2006
£000 £0o0
Year ending December 31

2009 228 214
2010 760 715
2011 39 37
2012 270 257
2013 214 227

2014 109
1,620 1,450

Other losses may be carned forward indefinicely

At the balance sheer date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated wirth undisiributed earnings of
subsidiaries for which deferred tax hahilities have not been recogmised was £1,724,000 (2006 £927,000) No lability
has been recognised in respect of these differences because the group 15 in a posinon te control the uming of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foresceable future

12 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minimum lease payments

2007 2006
Looo £400
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 377 412
In the second to fifth years inclusive 96 423
473 835
Less fucure finance charges (s1) (94)
412 741
Less Amount due for settlement withim
12 months {Nate 23) 1315) (364)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 87 377

It 15 the group's policy to lease certam of us plant, equipment and motor vehicles under finance leases For the year
ended December 31, 2007, the average effective borrowing rate was 6 1% (2006 6 1%) Interest rates are fixed ac che
concract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been enrered mto for contingent
rental payments All lease obligations are denominared o stechng

The fatr value of the Group's lease obligations approximares to their carrying amount

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets
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23 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Current loan instalments
Loan note
Bank overdrafts

Borrowings (Note 19)
Finance lease oblgauons (Nore 22)

The carrying amount of these habiines approximates to their fair value

The effective interest rate on the bank overdrafts was 6 7% (2006 5 9%)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Orher payables

1007
L0040

134
323
1,468
2,425
335

2,760

2007
£600

26,523
6,049

32,572

[ooree—

2006
£000

15,617

1,819

17,436
364

17,800

2006
£000

21,203
4,778

25,981

The average redic persod for trade purchascs is 100 days (2006 97 days) The Darcirors consider that the carrying

amount of trade payables approximates to their fur value

25 SHARE CAPITAL

Authonsed

28,000,000 (2006 28,000,000) shares of common stock of par value US$0 10 each {“shares of common stock™) with

an aggregate normnal value of US32,800,000 (2006 US$2,800,000)

Equity share caputal

Allorted, called up and fully paid

Shares of common stock of par value US$0 10 each
20,444,550 (2006 20,444 550)

The Company has one class of common stock which carry no nighe ro fixed income

2007
£a00

1,162

2006
£000

1,162
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

26 RETAINED DEFICIT AND OTHER RESERVES

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related o hedged transacuions

Translauon reserve

The translanon reserve comprises all forergn exchange differences ansing from the translacion of the financial
statements of foraign operations of the Company since January 1, 2004 as welt as from the translanon of liabihues
which hedge the Campany’s net investment 1n a foreign subsidiary

Treasury stock

Treasury stock represents the Company s purchase of its own shares The Company owns 767,321 (2006 813,321),
represenung 3 8% (2006 4 0%) of 1ts shares of common stock The changes duning the year were for the issue of
shares 10 sansfaction of opuions exercised 8,000 on February 20, 2007, 29,000 on June 29, 2007 and 19,000 on
December 13, 2007

207 2006

Dividends 1060 £800
Amounts recognised as distributtons to equity holders in the penod

Intennim dividend for the year ended December 31, 2007 of 3 15p {2006 3 Op) per share 619 387

Final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2006 of 3 75p (2005 3 6p) per share 736 704

1,355 1,291

Proposed final dvvidend for the year ended December 31, 2007 of 4 Op (2006 3 75p) per share 787 734

787 736

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by sharcholders at the Annual Meeting and has nor been included as
a habbiry 1n these financial scarements

6O
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27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On August 27, 2007, the group acquired MBI Publishing Company LLC {(*MB}") for a cash consideration of
US$ 12,500,000 This transacuon has been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting

Net assets acquired

Intangibles

Praperty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets - pre-publicanion costs
Inventories

Trade and other recesvables

Cash and cash cquivalents

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Tax payablc

Diferred tax

Goodwill

lotal consideranon

Sausfied by
Cash consideration
Acquistiion costs

Ner cash outflow ansing on acqusinon
Consideration
Net debt acquired

Book Fair Value Provisional
Value Adjustments Fair Value
£000 £000 £000

- 2,550 2,550

469 (116} 333
1,401 £33 2,084
3,888 (703) 3,185
6,918 13,423) 3,495
15 - 15
(11,062) - [11,062)
(4,327) {361) {4,688)
(5) 9

19 2,285 2,304
(2,684) 915§ {1,769)
8,230

6,461

6,250

111

6,461

6,461

11,077

17,538

The goodwill arising on the acquisinon s fargely attnburabte to the anteipared incremensal sales and cost synergies

with being part of the Quarto Group

MBI s contrtbution since acquisition, to Group profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent was £144,000

If the acquisition of MBI had been completed on the furst day of the financial year, Group revenues for the period

would have been £109,744,000 and Group profic attnbucable to equity holders of the Parent would have been

£3,768,000

Cash flow on other acquisitions durning che year amounted to £403,000
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2007

28 NOTESTO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Addinons to properry, plant and equipment durning the year amounang to £67,000 (2006 £321,000) were financed by
new finance leases

Cash and cash cquivalents (which are presented as a single class of asscts on the face of the balance sheet) comprise
cash at bank and other short-term highly Liquid investments with a matunty of three months or less

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Quarto Group, Inc has 1ssued guarantees in respect of £1,468,000 of overdrafts of subsidiaries {2006 £1,819,000)
and bank loans of £58,231,000 (2006 £41,932,000) The Group has also 1ssucd guarantees in respect of £422,000
{2006 £741,000) of hire purchase creditors and a loan note of subsidiaries £829,000 (2006 £842,000) There are
other contingent habilines, arsing in the ordimary course of business, i respect of hngation, which the Directars
believe will not have a sigmficane cffect on the financial position of the Group

30 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2007 2006
£L00o0 £000
—_— ———
Minimum lease payments under operaung leases
recogmised tn income for the year 1,546 1,591

At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding comnuuments for future minimum lease payments under non-
caneellable operaning leases, which fall due as follows

097 2006

L£oaon L0090

Within one ycar 1,439 1,314
In the second to Afth years inclusive 2,553 1,987
After five years 66 .
4,058 3,321

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group, pnimanty for us office properues

Capital commiements at the year end for which no proviston had been made was £310,000 (2006 £69,000)

31 SHARE OPTIONS

At December 31, 2007, the following share options over shares of common stock were outstanding under the
Company’s Executive Share Option Schemes

Number of shares Dare exercisable Option price per share
9,000 Februarv 22, 2003 - February 21, 2010 £1 115

11,000 February 15, 2005 ~ February 14, 2009 £0 67

5,000 February 15, 2005 - February 14, 2012 £0 67

29,000 February 14, 2006 - February 13, 2010 £0 83

14,500 February 14, 2006 - February 13, 2013 £0 83

38,686 September 30, 2007 - September 29, 2011 £1 63

22,314 September 30, 2007 — September 22, 2014 £163
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32 REMUNERATIONMN OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSOMNNEL

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, 1s set out below 1n aggregare
for each of the categones specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further information about the remuneranion of
mdividual directors 15 provided 1n the audrted part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 38 10 39

2007 24006

£000 £000

Salary 856 831
Benefits 27 34
Penstons 153 140
1,036 1,005

33 DIRECTORS TRANSACTIONS

During the year R ] Morley maintained a current account with the Group The debut balance on this account was
less than £5,000 throughour the year The balance at the year end was £n:l {2006 £300} During the year

L. F Orbach loancd money to the Group and has earned an arm's length return of 5§ 0% The total amount of
interest earned dunng the year was £3,000 (2006 £3,000) The balance outstanding a1 the beginning of the year was
£136,000 and the balance at the end of the year, which was also the highest amount outstanding, was £158,000

P Cambell, a non-execunive director, earned consuluing fees of £15,000 {2006 £15,000) during the year These fees
were on an arm § length basis

34 RECONCILIATION OF FIGURES INCLUDED INTHE CHAIRMAN S LETTER

2007 2006
LO00 £060
Profit before tax, before amortizanon of non current intangibles and non-recurring wems 7,651 7,262
Amortizacion of non-current intangibles (1,312) (1,387)
Non recurning items 370 (1,238)
Profit before tax 6,709 4,637
EBITDA
Prohit before tax, before amoruzanon of non-current intangibles and non-recurring items 7,651 7,262
Net interest 2,909 2,295
Depreciation 1,038 959
Amornzanon of pre-publicarion costs 8,416 7,461
EBITDA, before non-recurring iems 20,014 17,977
Net debt
Medium and long term borrowings 58,190 27,121
Short term borrowings 2,760 17,800
Cash and cash equivalents {17,577) (13,929)
43,373 30,992
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35 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group ts exposed to market risk through 1ts use of finaneial instruments and specifically to currency nisk, interest
rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operatng and investing activinies The Group’s nisk
management 15 co-ordinared at its headquarters, 1n close co-operation with the board of directors, and focuses on
actively securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure te financial markets

Long term financial investments are managed to generate lasung returns

The Group does not actively engage i the trading of financial assets for speculanive purposes nor does 1t write
options The most sigmfrcant finanoial risks to which the Group 1s exposed and a summary of financial assets and
liabilities hy category are deseribed below

Forugn Currency Scnsitiviry

kxposures to currenvy exchange rates arse from the Group's overseas sales and costs, which are primanly
denominated 1n US Dollars To mingate the impact of exchange rate fluctuanions, the Group tries to macch s US

Dollar inflows wich its US Dollar outflows but, in 2007 and 20086, the Group had net US Dollar income

Foreign currency denomunated financial assets and habilwies, transtated into Sterhing at the closing rate, arc as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
uss Ocher uss Other
Financial assets 62,177 5,887 43,475 5,572
Financial habilicies (11,6200 2,31 (14,497} (6,278}
Short-term exposure 50,557 3,575 28,978 {706}
Financial assets - - - -
Frnancial hrabilities [47,988) {4,950) 25,511) -
Long-term exposure (47,988) {4,990) {25,511) -
Net exposure 2,569 {1,415) 3,467 {706}

The following table iflustrates the sensittvity of the net resule for the year and equity in regards to the Group's
financial assets and financial habilines and the US Dollar - Sterhing exchange rate

Tt assuines a +/- 2% change of the Sterhing/US Dollar exchange rate This percentage has been deterinined based on
the average market volatihity n exchange races in the year ended December 31, 2007 The senstuvity analysis is based

on the Group’s foreign currency finanaal inseruments held at each balance sheet datc

If Sterhng had strengthened against the US Dollar by 2% then this would have had the following impact

2007 2006
£000 £000
Profit after 1ax for the year {36} {48)
Equuy {36) {48)

L,
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If Sterhng had weakened against the US Dollar by 2% then chis would have had the following umpact

1007
£000
Profit after tax for the year 36
Equuty 36

Exposures to foreign exchange rases vary dunng the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions
Nonetheless, the analysis above 1s considered to be representauve of the Group's exposure to currency risk

Interest Rate Sensitivaty

2006
£000

48

48

The Group s policy 1s t6 mimmuse interest rate cash flow nisk exposures on long-term finanuing, through interese race

swaps A large part of longer-term borrowings are, therefore, usually at fixed rates Ar December 31, 2007, the Group

15 exposed to changes in market interest rates through ws bank borrowmgs, which are subjeet to vanable wnterest rates

- see Note 19 for further informanon

The following rable illustrates the sensitivity of the proft after tax for the year and equity to a reasonably possible

change 1n interest rates of +1% and -1% (2006 +/-1%), with effect from the beginning of the year These changes are

considered to be reasonably possible based on observanon of current marker condittons The cakulations are based

on the Group's financial instruments held at each balance sheet date All other vanables are held constang

A 1% ncrease m mterest rates would have had the following impact

Profit after rax for the year

Equiry

A 1% decrease 1n interest rates would have had the following impact

Profir after tax for the year

Equity

Credit Risk Analysis

The Group s exposure 1o credut risk ss limted o the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the balance

sheer date, as summanised below

mor

£00n

Dernvative financial inscruments .
Cash and cash equivalents 17,577
Trade and other receivables 32,285
49,862

2006
£000

254
13,929
27,022

41,205

The Group connnuously monttors defaults of customers and other counterparties, dennfied either indiwidually or by

group, and incorporates this tnformacion into us credit nsk controls Where avatlable at reasonable cost, external

credit ranings andfor reports on customers and ather counszerparties are obtained and used The Group s policy 15 to

deal only with creditworthy counterparties

The Group's management considers thar all the above financial assers that are not impaired for each of the reporting

dates under review are of good credit quaiuy, including chose that arc past due
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None of the Group s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements

In respect of trade and ather recervables, the Group 15 not exposed to any sigmficanr credic risk exposure to any single

counterparty or any group of counterparnes having similar characterisues The credit nsk for hquid funds and other

short-term financial assets 1s considered neghgible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high qualiy

external credit ratings

Ligudity Risk Analysis

The Group manages uts hquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debr servicing payments for long term

financial habilities 25 well as cash outflows due in day-to-day husiness Liquidity needs are momiored 0 various time

bands, on a day-to-day and week to-week basis

The Group maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its iquidity requirements Funding for long-term

hiquidicy needs 1s addimonally secured by an adequate amount of commurted credit faclines

As at December 31, 2007, the Group's liabihiies have contractual maturines which are summarised below

December 31, 2007

Bank loans

Bank overdraft

Loan note

Finance lease obligatons

Trade payables

Other short term financial habilines
Dernvanves

Current Non-current
within 612 ltwos§ over
6 months months years S years
£000 £000 L0008 £000
67 67 41,473 16,630
1,468 - - -
- 423 - .
190 145 87 -
26,523 - - -
6,264 1,332 - -
- - 403 707
34,512 2,367 41,963 17,337

This compares to the matunty of the Group’s financial habilities 1n the previous reporting period as follows

December 31, 2006

Bank loans

Bank overdrafts

Loan note

Finance lease obligations

Trade payables

Other short term finzoncial habilitres

Current Non-current
with:n 6tol2 lws over
6 months months years 5 ycars
£000 £000 L000 £000
687 15,550 537 25,365
1,819 - - -
- 842 -
182 182 377 .
21,203 - . -
4,907 1,308 - -
28,178 17,040 1,756 25,365
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Summary of Financial Assets and Liabihities by Category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and habihittes as recognised ar the balance sheet dare of the

reporting periods under review may also be categonsed as follows See Note 2, sigmficant accounting policies,
covering financial assets, financial habilites and derivative financial mstruments and hedge accountng for

explanations zbout how the category of instruments affects their subsequent measucement

Current assets
Dernivative financial instruments
- Interest rate swap
Trade and other receivables
- Loans and receivables
Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Non cucrent habihities
Denvanive linancial instruments
- Interest rate swap
Borrowings
- Finanuial habihines measured at amortized cost
Other payables
- Finaneial habilines measured at amornzed cost

Current habilities
Borrowings

- Financial habilines measured at amortized cost

Trade payables and other short term financial habihites

- Financial habihnes measured at amortized cost

Capital Management Policies and Procedures

The Group’s capital management objectives are

* 10 ensure the Groups abihity to conunue as a gomg concern, and

¢ 1o provide an adequate return to shareholders

by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of nsk

2007
£000

32,285
17,577

49,862

1,110
58,190

29
59,329

2,760

34,189
36,949

2006
£000

254

27,022
13,929

41,205

27,121

27,142

17,800

27,418
45,218
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1007 2006
Notes £000 £900
FIXED ASSETS

Investments 3 7,262 7,553
7,262 7,153
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 5 (2,285) (1,036)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES {2,285) (1,036)
NET ASSETS 4,977 6,117

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share caputal 6 1,162 1,162
Treasury stock 6 1389) (417)
Reserves - Paid 1n surplus 7 21,768 21,740
- Prafit and loss 7 {17,564) {16,368)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 8 4.977 6,117

The financial starements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on March 18, 2008
They were signed on 1us behalf by

CATD

M ] Mousley

Durector




=

3

The Quarte Group doc Annual Bopon 2007

Notes to Company Balance Sheet
Year ended December 31, 2007

I SIGNIFHCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1385 As permutted
by rthat Act, the separace financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP format

These financial statements present informaton for the company, not abour 1ts group, which 15 presented on pages 43 - 76

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance wich applicable accounnng standards and under the
historieal cost accounting rules

Under section 230 (4) of the Companies Act 1985 the company 15 exempt from the requirement to present tts own
profit and loss account

Under FRS 1 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to preparc a cash flow statement on the grounds thar a
parcat undertaking includes the company 1n ity own published consohidarcd financial statements

The company has taken advantage of the exemprion contaned in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions
or balances with enuties which form part of the group (or investees of the group qualifying as related parues)

Accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently 1n dealing with items which are considered material
i relation to the financial scatements, excepr as noted below

Investments

Tnvestments 1n subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment

Share-based payments

The fair value of employee share opuan grants 1s calculated using 4 binomeal model The resulung cost 1s charged to
the income statement over the vesting period of the plans The value of the charge, which 1s immatenal, 1s adjusted
to reflect expected and acrual levels of options vesting

Finanaial Guarantee Contracts

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within 1ts group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accouncs for them as such In this
respect, the company treats the guarancee contract as a contingent hiabihiey untl such ume as 1t becomes probable
that che company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee
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2 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TQ THE COMPANY

The profic for the financial year deale wich 1n the financial statemencs of the parent company was £155,000 (2006
£(153,000)) As permitted by Sectron 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate profit and loss account 15
presented in respect of the parent company

3 INVESTMENTS

£600
Ac January 1, 2007 7,153
Additons 109
At December 31, 2007 7,262

The additions comprise the purchase of shares from minornty shareholders im Global Book Publishing Pty Lid and
Premier Books Lumiced
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4  SUBSIDIARIES

NAME PLACE AND DATE WIVED AND FULLY PERCENTAGE BUSINESS
OF INCORPGRATION PAID SHARE CAPITAL HELD

Quarto Publishing ple England 100,000 shares of £1 each 100* Co-edinon
1 April, 1976 Publishing

Quarto Inc Delaware, USA 60 shares of no par vatue 100* Co-ediion
16 October, 1986 Publishing

Western Screen and Sign England 1,500 shares of £1 cach 100* Publishing

Lamted 24 November, 1961

Quarto Magazines Fngland 1,000 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing

Lemiced 20 May, 1986

Regent Publishing Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$10 each 75 Co-edition

Services Lumuted 23 Ocraber, 1985 Publishing

Apple Press Limited England 100 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing
5 June, 1984

Quarto Austraha Pry Led  Austraha 8 redeemable preference 100* Publishing
14 September, 1981 shares of A$1 each and 103

ordinary shares of AS1 each

Prener Books Limited New Zeland 400,000 shares of 72t Publishing
27 September, 1996 NZ51 each

RotoVision S A Switzerland 1,500 shares of SFr500 each 100 Co-edinon
18 July, 1977 Publishing

Rockport Publishers Ine Massachusetts, USA 4,000 shares of no par value 100 Publishing
4 December, 1985

Rook Sales Ine Delaware, USA 85 shares of no par value 8s Publishing
13 December, 1972

Scafa-Tornabene Art Delaware, USA 1,210 shares of no 100 Publishing

Publishing Co , In¢ 29 June, 1987 par value

Walter Foster Delaware, USA 19,625 shares of 100 Publishing

Publishing, Inc 10 February, 1988 LSS0 01 each

Global Book Pubhishing Austrahia 1,000 shares of 100* Co-edinen

Pty Limited 4 November, 1999 AS1 each Publishing

Creatve Publishing Delaware, USA 100 shares af 100 Publishung

internznional, Inc 28 June, 2004 US$0 01 each

Aurum Press Limited England 382,502 shares of 90 Publishing
31 May, 1977 £1 each

Lifetime Distnbutors Australa 100,004 shares of 80 Publishing

“The Book People’ 3 December, 1990 A$1 each

Pry Limired

MB!I Publishing Delaware, USA 100 unues 100 Publishing

Company LLC

6 January, 2000
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5 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Amounts owed to subsidhiary undercakings

6 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY STOCK

2007 2006
£000 £000
2,285 1,036

Details of called up share capital and treasury stock are set out 1in Notes 25 1o 26 of the consalidated financial

statements

7 RETAINED DEFCIT AND OTHER RESERVES

At beginning of year

Resssue of treasury shares

Result for the year

Equuty settled rransactions net of tax
Dividends

Ar end of year

Paid 1n Profit and
surplus  loss account

£000 £000

Tosweeoen ceruccox

21,740 {16,368)
28 -

- 155

- 4

- (1,355)

21,768 (17,564)




The Quarto Group Inc Smaual Reporn 2007

Notes to Company Balance Sheet
Year ended December 31, 2007

8 RECONCILIATION QF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

Profit for the financral year
Dividends

Retained (loss) for the financial year
Issue of shares
Equury serded transactions net of tax

Net movement n shareholders’ funds
Sharcholders’ funds at January 1, 2006

Shareholders’ funds at December 31, 2006

9 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Conungent habilicies are disclosed 1n Note 29 to the Group accounts

2007

£0040

155

(1,355)

(1,200)
56
4

(1,140)
6,117

4,977

2006
p[th]

153
(1,291}
(1,138)

56
5

{1,077}
7,194

6,117




Fhe Quasie Grooup Tne \nnual Repors 2007

Five Year Summary

IFRS UK GAAP
2007 2006 1005 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Results
Revenue 100,107 93,613 95,038 79,750 74,623
Operating profit 9618 6,932 6,789 7,007 5,965
Profit before tax 6,709 4,637 4,566 5,392 4,873
Profit attnibutable to equncy holders 4,243 2,800 2,615 3,734 4,559
Assers employed
Non-current assets 30,709 20,396 23,717 22,052 12,246
Current assets 90,637 75,996 78,069 57,016 50,608
Current hiabilites (36,879) (45,218) (32,222} (33,549) {24,303}
Non-curreat habibines (62,602) (31,546) (49,817) (19,248) {10,463}
Nt assets 21,865 19,628 19,747 6,271 8,088
Financed by
Fquury 17,905 15,951 16,062 3,584 5,652
Minoricy mrerests 3,960 3,677 3,685 2,687 2436
21,865 19,628 19,747 6,271 8,088
Kcy stansncs
Farmngs per share 21 6p 14 3p 13 8p 20 8p 18 9p
Diluted earnings per share 21 1p 13 9p 13 5p 19 6p 18 2p
Adjusted diluted earmings per share 24 4p 22 5p 213p 212p 212p

The amounts disclosed for 2004 have not been restated for the prior period adjustment made m 2006 because it 1s nor
practical to do so

The amounts disclosed for 2003 are stated on the basts of UK GAAP because 1t 1s not pracucable to restate amounts
for persods prior to the date of transiion to IFRS

e

-



